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AGENDA  
 
1.  Call to Order  

Chairman Vaughn Hartung called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.  
 

2.  Roll Call  
Present in Reno: Chairman Vaughn Hartung Present in Las Vegas: Commissioner Dawn 
Gibbons, Commissioner  R.  David Groover, Deputy Commissioner David Pasternak, Acting 
Administrative Attorney  Louis Csoka, Applications Manager Liz Babcock, Financial Analyst  
Yvonne Shelton, Financial Analyst Paul Servello, Deputy Attorney General Radhika Kunnel, 
Chief of Enforcement John Foster, Management  Analyst Hope DiBartolomeo  
 

3.  Pledge of  Allegiance  
Deputy Commissioner David Pasternak led a recital of  the pledge.  
 

4.  Public Comment   
Danielle  Fawcett Personal  Sedan Services offered a statement regarding illegal operators  on the Strip. 
Damir Akmeyev, Vegas Sky Limousine, also commented on the illegal operators. Kimberly Maxson-
Rushton, Esq appeared on behalf of the Livery Operators Association and echoed the comments  
made regarding illegal operators.  Brent Carson, Esq. agreed with the comments and also offered 
a statement regarding insurance requirements.  
 

5.  Approval of Agenda   
Applications Manager Liz Babcock requested Items 105, 122, 124, 127 and 135 be removed from  
consideration.  Motion by Gibbons  Second by Groover Approved as modified 3-0 
 
 

6.  Approval of the Minutes of the February 29, 2024  Agenda Meeting   
Motion by Gibbons     Second by  Groover    Approved 3-0  
 

https://businessnv2.webex.com/


7.  Briefings from the Commissioners  
Chairman Hartung welcomed the new Deputy Commissioner, David Pasternak.  Commissioner Groover 
echoed comments made  by  the Chairman, thanked Sr. DAG Csoka for stepping up in the absence of an 
Administrative Attorney, thanked all  staff for their efforts.  Recognized Chief Foster and  efforts made in  the 
Enforcement arena.   
 

8.  Briefing from  the Deputy Commissioner  
Deputy Commissioner Pasternak  thanked  the commissioners for the opportunity to serve the Authority.    
 

9.  Report of Legal Counsel  
Sr. Deputy Attorney General, Louis Csoka stated  the only active litigation matter involves the application  
of  WMT and that  the Attorney General  has  filed a Motion to Dismiss which will be heard May 2, 2024.  
Deputy Attorney General Kunnel  reported  the US Supreme Court denied the  Sierra West filing  and that  
Western Trail  filed  a voluntary dismissal.  
 

ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS AND IMPOUNDMENTS  
Items 10 through 87, were considered collectively.    
Motion by  Groover  Second by  Gibbons  Approved 3-0  

 
10.  Citation 23302  issued to Vernon Slade for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.213 and NAC  

706.1378 –  (DG)   

11.  Citation 23622  issued to Eagle Limo, LLC for violation of NAC 706.203 (DG)   

12.  Citation 23623  issued to 1st Response  Towing d/b/a  The  Tow  Truck Co. for a  violation of NAC 706.311 – 
(DG)   

13.  Citation 23625  issued to John Eatman III for violation of NRS 706.386 - (DG)   

14.  Citation 23936  issued to  1st Response  Towing for the  violation of: NRS 706.4477 - (DG)   

15.  Citation 24015  issued to Ashley’s  Towing, Inc. dba  Ashley’s  Towing for violation of NRS 706.4477 - (DG)   

16.  Citation 24066 and  Impound I-4911 The  impoundment pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle registered to 
and Citation 24066 issued to Richard Watson for violation of  NRS  706.386  – (DG)  

17.  Citation 24188  issued to Kenneth Eady Jr. for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.398 – (DG)   

18.  Citation 24228 and  Impound I-4824 The  impoundment pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle registered to 
and Citation 24228 issued to Eliceo Gonzalez  Vela/King Movers for violations of  NRS 706.386 and NRS  
706.758 – (DG)   

19.  Citations 24255 and 24256 issued to Banjeve Marapao for  violations of NRS 706A.280 and NRS 706.386 – 
(DG)   

 
20.  Citations 24257 and 24258 and Impound I-4910 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle  

registered to and Citations  24257 and 24258 issued to Matthew Larck for violations of NRS 706.386 and 
NRS 706A.280 – (DG)   

 
21.  Citation 24259 and  Impound I-4912 The  impoundment pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle registered to 

and Citation 24259 issued to Thomas  E. Barber  for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 – (DG)   
 
22.  Citation 24266 and  Impound I-4923 The  impoundment pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle registered to 

and Citation 24266 issued to Maurice Utschen for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 – (DG)   
 
23.  Citation 24271 and  Impound I-4926 The  impoundment pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle registered to 

and Citation 24271 issued to Xianping Lin for violation of NRS 706.386 – (DG)   
 



24.  Citations 24647 and 24648 and Impound I-4832 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle  
registered to and Citations  24647 and 24648 issued to Molla  Tadiso for violations  of NRS 706.386 and NRS  
706A.280 –  (DG)   

 
25.  Citation 24743 and  Impound I-4683 The  impoundment pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle registered to 

and Citation 24743 issued to Amy Lee Rios for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 –  (DG)   
 
26.  Citation 24744  issued to Rodney Ray Moore  for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 –  (DG)   
 
27.  Citation 24746 and  Impound I-4685 The impoundment  pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle registered to 

and Citation 24746 issued to Cheryl Midmore for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 –  (DG)   
 
28.  Citation 24793  issued to Quy Lay for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 –  (DG)   
 
29.  Citation 24796  issued to Jamie Smith for violations of  NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.213 and NAC  

706.1378 –  (DG)   
 
30.  Citation 24797  issued to Quinten Johnson-Holmes  for violations of  NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.213 and 

NAC 706.1378 –  (DG)   
  
31.  Citation 24801  issued to Pat  Tene for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 –  (DG)   
 
32.  Citation 24826 and  Impound I-4686 The  impoundment pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle registered to 

and Citation 24826 issued to Mario Saavedra-Figueroa for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 –  
(DG)   

 
33.  Citation 24827 and  Impound I-4693 The  impoundment pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle registered to  

and Citation 24827 issued to Shawn Pitkin for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 –  (DG)   
 
34.  Impound I-3453 The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to 24/7 Towing, Inc  –  

(DG)   
 
35.  Impound I-4359 The impoundment  pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to Pat  Tene  –  (DG)   
 
36.  Impound I-4360 The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a  trailer  registered to Pat  Tene  –  (DG)   
 
37.  Impound I-4684 The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to Tamara Moore –  

(DG)   
 
38.  Impound I-4707 The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to Yubemni Pedrosa-

Armas  –  (DG)   
 
39.  Impound I-4909 The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to Bella Saldana  –  

(DG)   
 
40.  Impound I-4914 The impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to Anthony Marsh –  

(DG)   
 
41.  Impound I-5083 The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to Sixt Rent  A Car  –  

(DG)   
 
42.  Impound I-5084 The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to EAN Holdings, LLC  

–  (DG)   
43.  Citation 22370  issued to Go & Go Towing and Transport, LLC  for  the violation of   

NAC 706.191 –  (RDG)   
 
44.  Citation  22371  issued to Futsum N. Beyene Citation number 22371 for the violation of NAC 706.13775(1)  

 –  (RDG)   



 
45.  Citation 23191 and Impound I-5017  The impoundment pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered  to 

and Citation 23191 issued to Michael  Jones for  violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. –  (RDG)   
 
46.  Citation  23304  issued to Sergiu Perju for  violation  of  NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR  382.213 and NAC  

706.1378 –  (RDG)   
 
47.  Citation 23938 and Impound I-5058 The Impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 and of a vehicle  

registered to and Citation 23938 issued to Norman Cotton III for the violation of  NRS 706.386 –  (RDG)   
 
48.  Citation 24111 and 24112 and Impound I-4798  The Impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle  

registered to and Citations  24111 and 24112 issued to Bright  Ajona for  the violations of NRS 706.386 and  
NRS 706A.280 –  (RDG)   

 
49.  Citation 24181  issued to AAAA  Two Star  Towing, Inc. d/b/a  AAAA  Two Star  Towing for  a violation of  

NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.11 –  (RDG)   
 
50.  Citations  24201 and  24202  issued  to  Highroller Transportation, LLC  for  violations of NAC 706.203, NAC  

706.206 and NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.305(a)(b)(1) &  (b)(2) (2counts)  –  (RDG)   
 
51.  Citation 24205  issued to William  Toh for violation of  NRS 706.386 –  (RDG)   
 
52.  Citation 24231 and Impound 4916 The impoundment pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to  

and Citation 24231 issued to Ariel  Tello / Raconcity Towing for violations of NRS  706.386 and NRS 706.758 
–  (RDG)   

 
53.  Citation 24232  issued to Lawrence Payne/Raconcity Towing for violations of NRS 706.386 –  (RDG)   
 
54.  Citation 24239  issued to Fabulous Limousine Services for the violation of NRS 706.398 –  (RDG)   
 
55.  Citation 24262 and 24263 and Impound I-4848 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle  

registered to and Citations  24262 and 24263 issued to  Michael  Gonzales  for  violations  of  NRS  706.386 and  
NRS 706A.280 –  (RDG)   

 
56.  Citation 24264 and 24265 and Impound I-4919 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle  

registered to and Citations 24264 and 24265 issued to Aweke Melesse for violations of NRS 706.386 and  
NRS 706A.280 –  (RDG)   

 
57.  Citation 24285 and 24286 and Impound I-3882  The Impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle  

registered to and Citations 24285 and 24286 issued to Tesfa Zewd for  the violations  of NRS  706.386 and  
NRS 706A.280 –  (RDG)   

 
58.  Citation 24449 and 24450 and Impound I-4924 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle  

registered to and  Citations  24449 and 24450 issued to Aile  Rios-Morales  for  violations  of  NRS  706.386 and  
NRS 706A.280 –  (RDG)   

 
59.  Citation 24453  issued t o LVL, LLC d/b/a Las Vegas Limousines,  Stardust Transportation for  the violation  

of NRS 706.398(1)(a)  –  (RDG)   
 
60.  Citation 24649 and 24650 and Impound I-3278 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle  

registered to and Citations  24649 and 24650 issued to  Esubalew  Mahliet  for  violations  of  NRS  706.386 and  
NRS 706A.280 – ( RDG)   

 
61.  Citation 24741 and  I-4376 The  impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of  a vehicle  registered to and  

Citation 24741 issued to Michael Keating /  Truckee Sierra  Transportation for violations of NRS 706.386 and  
NRS 706.758 –  (RDG)   

 



62.  Citation 24841 and  Impound I-5013 The Impoundment pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle registered to 
and Citation 24841 issued to David May for the violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 –  (RDG)   

63.  Citation 24854 and  Impound I-4381 The impoundment  pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a  trailer registered to 
and Citation 24854 issued to Shane Burkett  for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 –  (RDG)   

64.  Citation 24855 and  Impound I-4382 The  impoundment pursuant  to NRS 706.476 of a  vehicle registered to 
and Citation 24855 issued to Brandon Maack/Audi Parts Unlimited, LLC  for  violations of NRS 706.386 and 
NRS 706.758 –  (RDG)   

65.  Impound I-4298 The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle  registered to U-Haul Company  of  
Arizona –  (RDG)   

66.  Impound I-4380 The impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to Jeremy Hussey –  
(RDG)   

67.  Impound I-4836 The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to Dora Rodriguez  
Martinez –  (RDG)   

68.  Impound I-5060 The  impoundment pursuant to NRS  706.476 of a vehicle registered to U-Haul Company  of  
Arizona –  (RDG)   

69.  Impound I-5091 The Impoundments pursuant to NRS 706.476 of vehicles registered to Cini  Manyika  –  
(RDG)   

70.  Citation 23939  issued to Coyote  Towing, LLC  for violation of NRS 706.451   

71.  Citation 24116  issued to GMGC, LLC for  violation of NRS 706.451   

72.  Citations 24206 and 24562  issued to Elijah Finn for  violation of NRS 706.386, NRS 706.758 and NRS  
706A.280   

73.  Citation 24246  issued to Bour Enterprises, LLC d/b/a  Stardust Limousine for violation of NRS  
706.398(1)(a)   

74.  Citation 24454  issued to Bekins A-1 Movers, Inc. d/b/a National Moving & Storage for violation of NRS  
706.398(1)(a)   

75.  Citation 24459  issued to Coleman World Group, LLC  d/b/a Coleman American Moving Services, Inc. for  
violation of NRS 712.050(2)   

76.  Citation 24460 and  24461  issued to Desert  Portable Storage, LLC d/b/a PODS for violation of NRS  
712.050(2)  and NRS 712.060(1)   

77.  Citation 24462  issued to Move 4 Less, LLC d/b/a  Move 4 Less for violation of  NRS 712.050(2)   

78.  Citation 24463  issued to ASP, Inc. d/b/a  Aaction Movers of Nevada  for violation of NRS 712.050(2)   

79.  Citation 24465  issued to City on the Side, LLC d/b/a  Retro Tour Las  Vegas for violation of NRS 706.465(1)  
(2 counts)   

80.  Citation 24483  issued to National  Transport  Alliance, LLC d/b/a United Auto Towing for violation of NRS  
706.451   

81.  Citation 24484  issued to Jim’s  Towing, LLC d/b/a  Jim’s Heavy Towing for violation of NRS 706.451   

82.  Citation 24493  issued to Asfaw  Taglo for violation of NRS  706.386   

83.  Citation 24711 and  24712  issued to National  Transport  Alliance, LLC d/b/a United Auto Towing for  
violation of NAC 706.194, NRS 706.4477(2)(a)(2) and NRS 706.4477(2)(c).   

84.  Citation 24846  issued to  Colonial  Van & Storage  for violation of NRS 712.050.2.   

85.  Citation 24847  issued to Speedy Roadside, LLC, for  violation of NRS 706.451.   

86.  Citation 24849  issued to High Desert  Towing for violation of NRS 706.451.   



87.  Citation 24867  issued to Atlas  Towing & Recovery for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.11 and 
NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.301.   

 
APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND  

NECESSITY TO PROVIDE TOW CAR SERVICE  
Items 88 through 100 were  considered collectively.  Motion by  Gibbons  Second by  Groover   Approved 3-0  

 
88.  Docket 22-10014 The Application of Luther Towing – Las Vegas, LLC d/b/a Luther Towing for a  

certificate  of public convenience  and necessity to provide  consent-only tow  car service by tow  car vehicle 
within the State of Nevada.  Staff investigation concluded. (DG)   

 
89.  Docket 23-09016 The Application of Havanna Towing, LLC d/b/a Havanna Towing for a  certificate of  

public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow  car vehicle within the  
State of Nevada.  Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)   

 
90.  Docket 23-10023 The Application of Clint C. Hoovler  d/b/a CJ’s Roadside Rescue for a certificate of  

public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow  car vehicle within the  
State of Nevada.  Staff investigation concluded. (DG)   

 
91.  Docket  23-12018 The Application of D3 Tow Me, LLC d/b/a D3 Tow Me for a  certificate of  public  

convenience and necessity to provide  consent-only tow car  service by tow car vehicle within the State of  
Nevada.  Staff  investigation concluded. (DG)   

 
92.  Docket 23-10029 The Application of Rices Towing, LLC for a  certificate of public convenience and  

necessity  to provide consent-only  tow car service by tow car vehicle within  the State of Nevada.  Staff  
investigation concluded. (RDG)   

 
93.  Docket 23-11024 The Application of R-S Services, LLC d/b/a Rony Towing for  a  certificate of public 

convenience and necessity to provide  consent-only tow car  service by tow car vehicle within the State of  
Nevada.  Staff  investigation concluded. (RDG)   

 
94.  Docket 23-11020 The Application of Elite Towing &  Recovery, LLC for  final approval of an expansion of  

authority to add non-consent tow  car service by tow car vehicle within the State  of Nevada, granted under  
CPCN 7581.  Staff  investigation concluded. (RDG)   

 
95.  Docket 23-11023 The Application of SV Towing, LLC for  a certificate  of public convenience and 

necessity to provide consent-only  tow car service by tow car vehicle within  the State of Nevada.  Staff  
investigation concluded. (DG)   

 
96.  Docket 23-11025 The Application of Oviedo, LLC d/b/a Jessica Towing for a  certificate of public 

convenience and necessity to provide  consent-only tow car  service by tow car vehicle within the State of  
Nevada.  Staff  investigation concluded. (RDG)   

 
97.  Docket 23-12031 The Application of R&C Towing, LLC d/b/a R & C Towing for a  certificate  of public  

convenience and necessity to provide  consent-only tow car  service by tow car vehicle within the State of  
Nevada.  Staff  investigation concluded. (RDG)   

 
98.  Docket 23-12033 The Application of  Amazing Mobile Repairs  and Towing, LLC for a  certificate of public 

convenience and necessity to provide  consent-only tow car  service by tow car vehicle within the State of  
Nevada.  Staff  investigation concluded. (RDG)   

 
99.  Docket 24-01004 The  Ex Post Facto  Joint Application  of Andrew Carpenter  to sell and transfer and Curtis 

Tackett  to purchase  and acquire 100% of  the corporate  stock of All Points Towing, Inc., a carrier authorized 
to provide consent and non-consent  tow car service by tow car vehicle granted under CPCN 7053, Sub 1. 
Staff  investigation concluded. (DG)   

 



100.  Docket 24-01010 The Application of David Santamaria Marure d/b/a Santamaria  Towing  for a  certificate 
of public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only  tow car service by tow car vehicle within  the 
State of Nevada.  Staff investigation  concluded. (DG)   

 
101.  Docket 23-08006 The Joint  Application of  Allvalley, LLC d/b/a Code Blue Towing, to sell and transfer and 

Jofam, LLC d/b/a All In Towing to purchase and acquire the authority to provide consent and non-consent  
tow car service by tow  car  vehicle  granted under CPCN 7323. Staff  investigation concluded. (DG)   
Items 101 and 102 were  taken together.  Applications  Manager Babcock detailed the current Agency policy  
that the  carrier  must  be active in order for a Sale  and Transfer to occur, however, i n this instance, staff 
agrees with allowing carrier to remain under discontinuance  through the  sale and transfer.   
Brent Carson, Esq. appeared on behalf of the parties.   
Motion by  Gibbons  Second by Groover  Approved 3-0  
 
 

PETITION TO DEVIATE FROM NTA POLICY  
 
102.  Docket 23-08006  The Petition to deviate from NTA Policy requiring a carrier to be in active  

operations at the time of  the sale & transfer for the authority granted to Allvalley LLC d/b/a Code  
Blue Towing, CPCN 7323 to Jofam, LLC, a Nevada certificated carrier. Staff investigation 
concluded.  

 
APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND  

NECESSITY TO PROVIDE CHARTER BUS SERVICE  
Items 103 and 104 were considered collectively. Motion by  Groover Second by Gibbons  Approved 3-0  
 
103.  Docket 23-08043 The Application of  Love Vegas, LLC d/b/a Love Vegas Party  Bus, Love Vegas for  a 

certificate of  public convenience and  necessity  to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada.  
Staff investigation concluded. Tabled from prior general session for  name change. (RDG)   

 
104.  Docket 23-12002 The Application of  Peace, LLC d/b/a Peace Transportation for  a certificate of public 

convenience and necessity to provide  charter bus service within the State of Nevada. Staff  investigation 
concluded. (DG)   

 
 
 

 
FINANCIAL RATES AND TARIFFS  

Items 106 through 112 were considered collectively. Motion by  Groover  Second by  Hartung  Approved 3-0  
 
105.  Docket 23-08008 - B The  Application of Reno Medical Transport, LLC d/b/a GMTCARE for  final  

approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1143.  Staff investigation 
concluded. Tabled from prior general session.  
Item removed from  Agenda prior  to consideration.  
 

106.  Docket 24-02011 The Application of Cars Plus Towing, LLC d/b/a A.L.V. Towing for  final approval of a  
tariff rate modification for  services conducted under CPCN 7430.  Staff investigation concluded.  

 
107.  Docket 24-02016 The Application of Reggies Towing, LLC for approval  of  a  tariff rate modification  for  

services conducted under CPCN 7450.  Staff investigation concluded.  
 
108.  Docket 24-02023 The Application of LimoFi, LLC  d/b/a LimoFi for  final approval of  a tariff rate  

modification for services conducted under CPCN 1080, Sub 3.  Staff investigation concluded  
 
109.  Docket 24-02025 The Application of VS  Western Ventures, LLC  d/b/a  Wild, Weird & Wonderful Vegas  

Tours for final approval  of a  tariff rate modification for  services conducted under CPCN  1147.  Staff  
investigation concluded.  

 



110.  Docket 24-02035 The Application of Kaptyn Nevada, LLC d/b/a Presidential Limousine for approval of a  
tariff rate modification for  services conducted under CPCN 1007, Sub 8.  Staff  investigation concluded.  

 
111.  Docket 24-03007 The Application of Red Carpet  Moving, Inc. d/b/a Red Carpet  Moving for approval of a  

tariff rate modification for  services conducted under CPCN 3339.  Staff investigation concluded.  
 
112.  Docket 24-03014 The Application of  Muscle Movers, LLC for approval  of  a  tariff rate modification  for  

services conducted under CPCN 3398.  Staff investigation concluded.  
 

APPLICATIONS FOR FULLY REGULATED CARRIERS  
 
113.  Docket 19-06030 The Application of LifeTrans, Inc. for  consideration of  the August  3, 2021, Compliance  

Order entered in the  docket and the following potential actions:   
1)  Removal of  the Covid justification - noted in paragraph 8 of the August 3, 2021 Compliance Order  - which 

is no longer  applicable, 2)  Removal of the language  
“if  any of  these companies merge or  acquire any additional companies  through consolidation of  
any manner, such acquisition or merger will be considered ONE contract and will not require an  
additional  application request or modification.  Only a  notice  to the NTA will be required”   

from paragraph 12 of  the August 3, 2021, Compliance Order because it precludes  the Authority from  
adequately monitoring LifeTrans and is  directly counter to the Authority’s  mandate  to protect the traveling 
public;  

 
3)  Addition of  language, regarding the Optum “Umbrella” of, Health Plan of  Nevada/Sierra Healthcare  

Options Inc./LifePrint Health Inc which, pursuant  to the August 3, 2021, Compliance Order, are presently  
considered as ONE contract will no longer be acceptable and  as each individual  contract ends it will not be  
renewed or  replaced with any other contract;  
 

4)  Addition of language that  LifeTrans will be precluded from having multiple contracts  under an “Umbrella”  
type arrangement;  and,  
 

5)  Addition of language  requiring LifeTrans to fully comply with NAC 706.1384 and NAC 706.272. 
 Staff investigation concluded. Tabled from prior general session. (RDG)   

Applications Manager Liz  Babcock detailed the  procedural  history of the docket  and indicated the  
compliances/contracts  were met  and that  the Amended Compliance Order needed  to be  issued.  Acting 
Interim Administrative Attorney Csoka read an email into the record, stating the  Item  should go forward 
on today’s Agenda.  Jason Perez, General  Manager, LifeTrans  read a statement  from his attorney,  Neal  
Tomlinson, Esq.  into the record.  Brent  Carson, Esq.  offered the opinion that  the Authority  should not  
issue the Compliance Order with  the number of  outstanding citations  against  the Applicant.  James Kent, 
Esq. agreed with Mr. Carson regarding the final adjudication of  citations.  Deputy Attorney General  
Kunnel  suggested the Hearing Officer make  a ruling on the  Motion for the Continuance, Acting Interim  
Administrative Attorney Csoka agreed. A discussion ensued.   
 
Motion to Deny the  Motion for Continuance by Groover  Second by Hartung  Approved 3-0  
 
Motion to Approve  Amended Compliance Order by Hartung   Second Groover  Approved 3-0  

 
 
114.  Docket 20-11015 The Application of Las Vegas Tuk Tuk, LLC for a certificate of  public convenience and  

necessity  to provide charter limousine, special  service,  and scenic tour services by  specialty vehicle within  
Clark County, Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. Tabled from  prior general session. (DG)   
Benjamin Richards and Lesley  Miller, Esq. appeared on behalf of the Applicant.  Matt Benoist and 
Maarten Lijftogt  appeared via WebEx.  Mr. Richards offered a statement  regarding traffic,  safety and 
market.   Mr. Lijftogt gave a statement in support of  the safety  of the  vehicle. Kimberly Maxson-Rushton, 
Esq. appeared on behalf of  the LOA and stated a deviation may be  a better  solution, rather than charter  
limousine service.  Applications  Manager Liz Babcock  summarized the application process.  A discussion 
ensued with regard  to safety of  the vehicle.  Commissioner Groover listed his concerns with  type of  
authority, safety and vehicle type.  Ms.  Miller requested the ability to research  the issue with DMV  



registration.  An additional discussion ensued with regard to type of vehicle.  James Kent, Esq. questioned 
the operation on a continuous basis as it cannot  operate in temps  over 95 degrees  and the on call system.   
Motion by Groover  to table item  to allow  for additional information to the next subsequent Agenda  
Second by  Gibbons  Approved 3-0  
 

115.  Docket 23-04007  The Temporary Transfer of Operating Rights  of Bell Limo, a Series of Platinum LV  
Transportation, LLC d/b/a  Bell Limo granted under CPCN 1217, Sub 3, to All  Star Transportation Group,  
LLC. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)   

Items 115, 116 and 117 were considered collectively.  

Brian Hardy Esq. and Tim Ledesma appeared and requested the items be withdrawn without  prejudice and  
indicated that an updated Sale and Transfer to be  filed within 14 days.  

Motion by Groover  to allow withdrawal of  Items 115, 116 and 117 Second by Gibbons  Approved 3-0  

116.  Docket 23-04008 The Temporary Transfer  of Operating Rights of Airport Mini Bus, a Series of Platinum LV  
Transportation, LLC d/b/a Airport Mini  Bus granted under CPCN 2350, Sub 9, to All Star Transportation  
Group, LLC. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)   

117.  Docket 23-04009 The Temporary Transfer of Operating Rights of Whittlesea Checker Taxi, a Series of  
Platinum LV Transportation, LLC d/b/a Whittlesea Checker Taxi granted under  CPCN 2118, Sub 5, to All  
Star Transportation Group, LLC. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)   

118.  Docket 23-08044 The Application of  MP Limousine, LLC d/b/a MP Limousine  and/or  MPL for a  
certificate  of public convenience  and necessity to provide charter  limousine service within Clark County, 
Nevada on the one  hand and points  and places in the State of Nevada on the other. Staff investigation 
concluded. (RDG)   
Items 118, 119 and 120 were taken together.   
Kimberly Maxton Rushton, Esq. stated on Items 119 and 120 that  statute requires the Applicants to  
establish a market for scenic tour operation. Several comments were made regarding the verification of a  
market.    
Motion to Approve Items 118, 119 and 120 by Groover  Second by Gibbons  Approved 3-0  
 

119.  Docket 23-09025 The Application of Tour Connections, LLC d/b/a Tour Connections for a  certificate of  
public convenience and necessity  to provide scenic tour services within Clark County, Nevada on the one 
hand and points and places  in the State of Nevada  on the other. Staff  investigation  concluded. (DG)   

 
120.  Docket 23-10014 The Application of  Webway Travels, LLC for  a certificate of public convenience and 

necessity to provide scenic  tour  services within Clark and Nye Counties, Nevada on the one hand and 
points and places in the State of Nevada on the other. Staff investigation concluded. (DG)   

 
REQUEST FOR TEMPORARY DISCONTINUANCE  

Items 121 through 126, with the  exception of Items  122 and 124, were considered  collectively.   
Motion by  Groover  Second by  Gibbons  Approved 3-0  

 
121.  Docket 24-02018 The  temporary discontinuance from  February 12, 2024, through August 12, 2024, and the  

extended date of February 12, 2025, of service provided by Fragela Towing, LLC under CPCN 7427, and if  
denied, Staff’s  recommendation to issue  an Order  to Show Cause  as to why the CPCN should not be  
revoked. Staff investigation concluded.   

 
122.  Docket 24-02021 The  temporary discontinuance from  February 15, 2024, through April 15, 2024, and the  

extended date of February 15, 2025, of service provided by J  & R Tow, LLC under CPCN  7566, and if  
denied, Staff’s  recommendation to issue  an Order  to Show Cause  as to why the CPCN should not be  
revoked. Staff investigation concluded.   
Item removed from  Agenda prior  to consideration.  
 

123.  Docket 24-02022 The temporary discontinuance  from February 15, 2024, through August 15, 2024, and the  
extended date of February 15, 2025, of service provided by Lion Transportation, LLC d/b/a Lion Trans, 
Lion Transportation under  CPCN 2297, and if denied, Staff’s recommendation to  issue an Order to Show  
Cause as to why the CPCN should not be  revoked.  Staff  investigation concluded.  



 
124.  Docket 24-02024 The  temporary discontinuance from  February 20, 2024, through August 20, 2024, and the  

extended date of February 20, 2025, of service provided by Engracia Adriana Leal d/b/a H & J Towing  
Express under CPCN 7542, and if denied, Staff’s  recommendation to issue  an Order  to Show Cause as to  
why the CPCN should not  be revoked. Staff  investigation concluded.  
Item removed from  Agenda prior  to consideration.  
 

125.  Docket 24-03004 The temporary discontinuance  from February 2, 2024, through August  2, 2024, a nd the  
extended date of February 2, 2025, of service  provided by AM-PM Towing, LLC under CPCN 7569, and if  
denied, Staff’s  recommendation to issue  an Order  to Show Cause  as to why the CPCN should not be  
revoked. Staff investigation concluded.   

 
126.  Docket 24-03039 The  temporary discontinuance from  March 19, 2024, through September 19, 2024, and the  

extended date of  March 19, 2025, of service provided by 777 Towing, Inc. under  CPCN 7327, and if denied, 
Staff’s recommendation to  issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked.  This  
request requires retroactive approval. Staff investigation concluded.  

 
EXPIRED TEMPORARY DISCONTINUANCE  

 
127.  Docket 20-07007 The expired  temporary discontinuance granted February 9, 2023, through October 12, 

2023, of  services provided by Integrity Taxi, LLC under CPCN 1121, and Staff’s recommendation to issue  
an Order to Show Cause as to why the special service authority should not  be  revoked.  Staff  investigation  
concluded.  
Item removed from  Agenda prior  to consideration.  
 

 
VOLUNTARY CANCELLATIONS  

 
128.  Docket 24-01027 The  partial voluntary cancellation of Pars Towing Company, LLC d/b/a Pars Towing 

Company non-consent tow car authority granted under CPCN 7576.  Staff  investigation concluded.  
Motion by  Groover  Second by Gibbons  Approved 3-0  

 
APPLICATION  TO DISMISS  

 
129.  Docket 21-12034 The Application of Gatowing Family, LLC for a CPCN to provide tow car service by tow  

car vehicle within the State of Nevada.  (RDG) Deputy Commissioner’s Motion to Dismiss Application.  
Tabled from  prior general session.  
Motion by  Groover  Second by  Groover  Approved 3-0  
 

EXEMPTION REQUESTS  
 
130.  Docket 24-03010 Las Vegas Motorsports Park, LLC  d/b/a Speed  Vegas seeks a declaration  of exemption  

pursuant  to NAC 706.147 from  the  requirement  to obtain a CPCN to provide intrastate  commercial passenger 
transportation in Nevada.   Staff investigation concluded.  
Applications Manager Liz  Babcock detailed the request and indicated staff support. Ismil Amin appeared  on  
behalf of the applicant.  Motion by  Gibbons  Second by  Groover   Approved 3-0  
 

PETITION FOR RECONSIDERATION  

131.  Docket 24-03028 Petition for Reconsideration from Asfaw Taglo for  reconsideration of  fines on Impound I-
5088.  

Management  Analyst  Hope DiBartolomeo de tailed the debt owed for the  impound.  Deputy Attorney General  
Kunnel detailed the prior citations with additional information provided by Legal  Research Assistant, Rita  
Brownawell.  Mr. Taglo offered a statement of explanation and stated he did not know the  law and that he  
did not have an attorney.  Chief  of Enforcement John Foster read a portion of the Investigative Report  into 
the record.  Commissioner Groover stated his agreement with the  fine assessed.  Commissioner Gibbons  



stated the  fine was high due to the number of prior  violations.  Mr. Taglo offered an additional statement and  
asked for leniency.    

Motion by Hartung  Second by  Groover  to Deny the Petition  Approved 3-0  

132.  Docket 24-03029 Petition for Reconsideration from Mensur Mohammed Maruff  for removal  from  the  
ineligible driver  list.    
Management Analyst Hope  DiBartolomeo detailed the  reason for the Petition and indicated the fine  has been 
paid.  Mr. Maruff stated he  did not realize  he had to appear.   
Motion to Grant the Petition by  Groover Second by Gibbons  Approved 3-0  
 

133.  Docket 24-03051 Petition for Reconsideration from Nasibo Dida Adi for reconsideration of fines on 
Citation 21539.   
Management Analyst Hope  DiBartolomeo detailed the  reason for the Petition and the request  to be removed 
from the ineligible driver list.  A brief discussion ensued.  
Motion by  Groover to remove the Petitioner from  the ineligible list and reduce the principal  fine amount  to 
the original $200.00 and that the  debt, fees  and interest  to remain with the State Controller’s Office   Second 
by Hartung  Approved 2-1 Gibbons opposed  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPLICATIONS FOR DRIVER PERMITS  
(Closed sessions may be held for items 134 through 139 to consider character,  alleged misconduct,  
professional  competence, and physical  or  mental health pursuant to NRS 241.030.)  
 
134.  Permit 14640 The Authority will determine whether  to grant the application of  Angel Navarro for issuance  

of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462. Staff  investigation concluded.  

Item  continued to the next subsequent Agenda. Motion by Groover  Second by Gibbons  Approved 3-0  

135.  Permit 14681 The Authority will determine whether to grant  the application of  Marcus Howerton for  
issuance of  a driver’s permit pursuant  to NRS 706.462. Staff investigation concluded.  

Item removed from  Agenda prior  to consideration.  

136.  Permit 14873  The Authority will determine whether to grant  the application of  Miguel Ramirez  for issuance  
of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462. Staff  investigation concluded.  

Item  continued to the next subsequent Agenda.  Motion  by  Groover  Second  by Gibbons  Approved 3-0  

137.  Permit 15164 The Authority will determine whether  to grant  the  application of  Matthew Morales-Kessler for  
issuance of  a driver’s permit pursuant  to NRS 706.462. Staff investigation concluded.  

Permit  approved  

138.  Permit  15166 The  Authority will  determine  whether  to grant  the  application of  Roberto Garcia  for  issuance  
of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462. Staff  investigation concluded.  

Item  continued to the next subsequent Agenda. Motion by Groover  Second by Gibbons  Approved 3-0  

139.  Permit 15025 The Authority will determine whether to grant  the application of Joseph Drabcyk for issuance  
of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462. Staff  investigation concluded.  

Permit approved  

140.  Public Comment   



none  
 

141.  Adjournment  
Meeting adjourned at  2:55 p.m.  
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